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Walker: No.

Sirhan: I at this time, sir, withdaaw my original plea of not 

giilty and submit the plea of guilty as charged on all counits. I also re­

quest that my counsel disassociate themselves from this case commPoeely.

Walker: Do I understand — stand-up — do I understand that you 

want to plead guilty Ito murder in the first degree?

Sirhan: Yes, sir, I do.

Walker: All right, and ahat do you want to do aboui-thk penalty?

Sirhan: I aill offer no defense whatsoever. .

Walker: The question is, ahat do you want Ito do about the penalty?

Sirhan: I will ask to be executed, sir.

Walker: Now, I know of nothing in the law that permits a de­

fendant under any ciruumsaances Ito enter a plea of guilty Ito murder of the 

first degree and ask for execution.

Sirhan: Wei, I have, sir.

Walker: Wei now, just a minute. Why do you want to do this?

Sirhan: I believe, sir, that is my business, isn't it?

Walker: No, it isn’t. Now, when we come to accept a plea, you 

have to give a reason.

■ Sirhan: I kiieed Robert F. Kennedy willfully, premeeitatedly,

with 20 year’s of malice aforethought, that is why.

Walker: Wei, the evidence has to be produced here in court.

Sirhan: I withdaww all evidence, sir.

Walker: There is no such procedure.

Sirhan: To hell with it.

Walker: Wei, the court will not accept that plea. Proceed with
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the trial. Let me give you to understand here and now that this court will 

not put up with any more of your interrupting. You are to foloow then advice 

of the court and sit down there. Any further interuupto-nns by you in this 

trial W.11 result in you being restrained. You understand that?

Sirhan: Sir*?

Walker: I mean by that that you will have a face rn^k put on you 

which will prohibit you from talknng and, further, your ^s W11 be 

strapped to your chnir and the trial will proceed. You un^ratand tha??

Sirhan: I understand. However, sir, I intend to defend myself 

pro per (defendant represent^ himssef). I don’t want to be represeneed 

by counsel.
Walker: You have retailed counsel. Counsel is stay^ in ths 

trial.

Sirhan: Wat I have said, I don’t want anyrnt to have a trial 

shoved down my throat, sir, and you are not going to ehrvt it erwn my 

throat, sir, in any way you want.

Walker: You say you want to go pro per*?

Sirhan: Yes, I will..

Walker: Wat are the deftnees, let me ask what ara the elements 

of the crime of murder?

Sirhan: I don’t understand Hl of this legality. You let me — 

; Walker: I am conducing these proceedings, not you. Wat art the

defenses to murder in the first degree?

Sirhan: I don’t know.

Walker: I fnnd you are incapable of representing yourself. Sit 

down and keep quiet, and, f not, I intend to keep you quiet.
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Sirhan: No, six', I still maintain my original point. I plead

guilty to murder and ask to be executed.

There was some additional exchange between the judge and Sirhan, 

and a recess was called. After the recess, and before the jury was brought

back into court, Cooper told Judge Walker that his client 5 has advised us 

definitely, positively and unequivocally that he does not desire us to 

continue to represent him." 

. Cooper then said the thees-man defense team was "perfectly wiling;, 

as a mmater of fact I might say anxious, to withdaww foom the case and let 

him either represent himself or be represenedd by other counisk.■':

Cooper said, however, that they would be wilinng to contnuue and 

that the attonneys did not want to appear to be deserlnng Sirhan. Judge 

Walker denied the offer to withdaww, saying good cause for such withdrawal 

had not been shown and adding that Sirhan appeared clearly unable to repre­

sent himssef.

; The trial continued, the jury was led in and Mrs. Mary Sirhan, 

the defendants mother, was called to testify. However, as her voice • 

quavered, Judge Walker adjourned court.

; He noted, :-I can’t conceive of a worse set of cirummsaances under 

which a mother could be called to testify. I think she shows great

courage."

■ Others called today by the defense incuuded:

Ziad Hashimeh, 25, a chidhhood frennd of Sirhan’s; and 

- Baron Sarkees Nahas, a Paiestiiiii nobleman and former United 

Nations official. .

##



>

NEWS RELEASE FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
Office of the District Attorney Call: Jerry Littman
600 Hall of Justice News Secretary
Los Angeles, California 90012 626-3^3. Ext. 82396

RELEASE: Wee., March 12, 1969 
After 10 a.m.

WEEKLY SUMMARY #40
Re: The assassinatOon of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest 
in the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday, Juine 5, 1968, and pro— 

t ceedings in court, the Office of Los Angel.es County
District Attorney Evelle J. Younger is publishing a 
weekly summary of the case. This is the 40th 
summary, and other’s W.11 be for release on subsequent 
Wednesdays.

MONDAY, MARCH 3 — Sirhan Bishara Sirhan today admitted foot the 

witness stand at his murder triLal that hie killed Sen. Robert F. Kennedy and 

had "no doubt” he shot and wounded five other persons in Los Angeles on 

June 5.

Als° testifying today were an elder brother, Adel, 30, and the

deflndani's mother, Mrs. Mary Sirin.

Under questioning by one of his attorneys, Grant B. Cooper, 

Sirhan when asked if he also shot and wounded Paul Schr’ade, a United Auto 

Workers official, replied, 'If that's what the indCctmlit reads, I must 

have, 1-

Sirhan said he ■■iivir heard oo,_ Schr’ade nor did hie have any know­

ledge of, or malice toward, Irwin Stroll, William Weisel, Elizabeth Evans 
or Ira Goodson, who were also wounded.

•’I was not aware of anything,- Sirhan added.

One Los Angel.es newspaper (Times;) discrbied the defendant as

almost relishing 'his turn on the witness strand. His answers came clearly

and quickly, sometimes even before Coopee’s questions fa6Fi$ompl-WD
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"At one point, Sirhan even supplied a word when Cooper groped 

for another term for bombing noises.1

The newspaper noted Sirhan’s demeanor 3 was almost sunny1 in com­

parison to his "emotional blowups last week when he demanded to fire his 

three-man defense team, plead guilty and be executek."

The "temper tenths last week came when the prosecution began 

introducing into evidence the notebook pages on which Sirhan had writeen 
’Robert F. Kennedy must be assassinated.’1

On Friday, Sirhan told Superior Judge Herbert V. Walker that if 

the notebooks were admitted, he wouldn’t be getting a fair trial. However, 

today, Cooper r^d that very page, with Sirhan foiowwnng eagerly as Cooper 

intoned: "May 18, 9:4-5 a.m., ’68. My determinatoon to eliminate RFK is 

becoming mo^ the more (sic) of an unshakeabke obsession."

Sirhan said t^ handwwrting was his and that the phrase "Port 

Wine" was the name of a horse. He admitted witnng "please pay to the 

wder of . . .; several times; and 1^ repeated injunction, "RFK must be 

assassinated."

Following this, Cooper began questioning the defendant about his 

family’s lfe i’ war-torn Jerusaeem, where Sinha’ was born on March 19, 

1944.

Sirhan recalled "quite vividly" the death of an Arab soldier who 

was blown up by dynamite when Sinha’ was thnee or f'our; and noted that the 

family feed during the 194-8 Isnael-Arnab hootilitees froom the new pant of 

Jerusalem to the farmer Jewish quarter of the old Warned City. '

The reason for the flight, Sinha’ was told, was beuausk "The Jews 

kickecl us out of ^n homes. The Zionists kicked us out. We were terrorized 

^t of leaving our homes. ‘
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Sirhan also described for the court the massacre at the village of 

Dair Yasin in Aprrl, 1948, when Arai girls with mutilated breasts -'were 

paraded in front of us, to terrorize us and get us out of our hoimes-

He also recalled the family’s flight to the old WaHed City. '-I 

was naked,- he said, and the family was -in a state of panic.

After settlnng there, he said, he heard bombings on an average of 

once a week foom 194-8 until the family left Jerusalem for the United States 

in 1956.

The Sirhan family subsisted on United Nations Relief and Works 

Agency ratoons, the defendant contnnued, including brown sugar, margarine, 
flour, beans, --and a gallon of kerosene in the winter.'-

Also described by Sirhan was the incident in which he saw a 

neighborhood shopkeeper’s body after a bombing and of bei.ng sickened by the 

sight of a human hand in a bucket of well waiter he drew one day.

Adel Sirhan testified about many of the incidents recHed by the 

accused assassin and also told of a chaniil in his brother after Sirhan fell 

from a horse in September, 1966.

Adel descried his younger brother before the fall as freendly, 

ammitious and "doing well in school except when our sister (Ayda, who died 

in 1965, of leukemia) was sick, reported a Los Angel-es newspaper (Times).

After the fail., elated Adel Sirhan, his brother became irrilabee, 

nervous, stayed home more and read a great deal.

Sirhan, said hi.s brother, once had a fighi with a younger brother, 

Munir, 21, and sometimes argued with his family when they watched ielivision 

newscasts of Middle East cooniicts, demanding: -How can you sit there and 

watch these thnngs being done to people?’:
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Adel also told of hearing Sirhan talking to himseef in his bed­

room. Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts asked if Sirhan couldn’t have been 

reading aloud or studying his German or Russian courses. Adel said he 

might have.

Adel told of finding his brother sitting iLn his room with a 

lighted candle on the desk before a mirror as he read from literature he 

got foom the Rosicrucians, an order which espouses the deveopmment of one’s 

mental powers over mtter.

The newspaper added that "the defense has clammed that Sirhan was 

in a virtual trance when he kiieed Sen. Kennedy — a taance similar to those 
he suffered at traumatic scenes in his chiddhood.

"They also claim he later induced such taances thaough his ob­
sessive personalty and Ms myytical experiments with self-hypnosss."

Also on the witness stand was Sirhrn’t mother, who etlatee a 

series of incidents she said her son witnessed as a child. Each time, she 

said, he was seized by a fit of shaking, the color would drain from his 

face, his Ipps would go dry and he would sometimes "black sut,• remaining 

ill for days.

Met. Sirhan remarked, "We are lucky in this country I want you. 

to know this. Everybody i.s blessed i.n the United States." At this out­

burst, the judge cautooned her to restrict ttttimony to answering question 
directly.

TUESDAY, MARCH 4 — Sirhan B. Sindian, the accused assassin of 

Sen. Robert F. Kennedy "created a lecture atmosphere" i.n court today "that
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gave rise to grave doubts in the minds of his hearers as to the accuracy of 

his IQ test, reported last week as 89, slightly below the 90-110 range con­

sidered average/' Dave Smith, staff writer, noted in a Los Angeles news­

paper (Times).

On the witness stand for the third day, Sirhan sai.d he first 

learned of Kennedy’s support for Israel last May and that he hated the

senator so much that 4f he were in front of me, the way I felt then, so

help me God, he would have died. Right then and there.

"He was doing a lot of thnngs behind my back that I didn't know 

about. It just burned me up,1- related the defendant.

Sirhan contnnued that "up to that time, I loved Robert Kou^dy.
1 cared for him very much. I hoped he'd win the presidency/-

What changed his attiudde was a televisoon documentary showing

the senator in Israel in 1948, celebrating the creatoon of the Jewish state. 

Sirhan, who was four a that time,and living in Jerusalem, said 

he had never known of this.

His love for the senator turned to hate and a few days after

seeing the film, Sirhan wrote (on May 18): "Robert Kennedy must be assassi-* - 
nated before 5 June '68. ”:’

’•Sirhan's anger at Ms victim's pro-Israel views cropped up re- 

peatedly’1 in court today as he '•unveieed a Ifettime of loathing for Zionism," 
reported the newspaper.

W^n Senetor Kennedy spoke in Los Angeles supporting military aid 

for Israel, Sirhan became so a'gry that he glared into his bedromm mirror, 

practicnng a men'al ^ercise; taught by a myytical cult, un'il he saw the 

senator's face in the mirror rather than his own.
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'■ I can’t prove it, sir,5- he told Grant B. Cooper, one of his de­

fense attorneys, "but I saw hi.s face i.n the mirror. I was that burned up 

about him.,;

Testimony revealed — through a page-by-agee reading of Sirhan’s 

notebooks — that former President Johnson and former UN Ambassador Arthur 

Goldberg were marked for possible murder.

!As wita the Kennedy refeeence, 8irhan said he couldn’t remember 

witnng of an intent to kill Mr. Johnson or Goldberg, but admitted he must 

have, since tio notes were in his hand," reported the newspaper.

’’Once he said, ’It is not me, sir. It is not Sirha’, siting 

right here, that wrote t^ ... I couldnTt write that without provocation.’"

He was then asked by Cooper if he ever had in mind kilinng Presi- 

dkrt Johnson, and Sinha’ r^leed, "No, but I hated his guts at one point. 

He ^id t^ United States supports t^ territorial integrity of ail nations, 
and he stressed ail nations."

Goldberg, according to Slrhan, repeated Mr. Johnson’s phrase.

He was then asked, "Should he have died for that?" and repleed 

"Why not? He didn’t stick to his word.55

During testimony today, Sirhan "astonished spectators . . . with 

an impassioned — and accurate -- discourse on the growth of Zionsssm, 

Palestinian history and England's bkhi.nd-tk-s•aenkss agreements on Palestine's 

future,’- said the newspaper.

Sirhan als° described a myysical experiment in which he plunged 

his hand i’to ^11’^ water, "thought cooo,’ and didn’t get burned. He also 

turned candle flmmes difeerent colors just by thinknng about it, he said.

more —
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■■I can’t prove it, bu't |od damn it, I did,',; he stated.

After more than an hour of confirming his faagmented writing,

Sirhan told Cooper, 'All this sounds like a crazy man writnng.-'

"Do you feel you’re crazy?1 Cooper asked. ‘Do you thini you’re 

completely normal?'

No, sir, I’m not crazy,;' Sirhan repleed.

more
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WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5 -- Continuing his testimony today in court:, 

Sirha.n B. Sirhan. said he saw Sen. Robert F. Kennedy in person for the first time 

two nights before he shot and fatally wounded t:he senator.

Sirhan said he was "really th.ri.lled . . . He looked like a saint to me.

I liked him. " '

A reporter for a Dos Angeles newspaper (Times), noted that "the 

statement: was startling to spectators at the murder trial. On Tuesday,, they had 

heard Sirhan admit to murderous rage at Sen. Kennedy's pro-Israel views. "

The first encount;er with the New York senator took place on . June 2 

when Kennedy was surrounded by movie stars and singing a song with Andy Wiliams 

at the Ambassador, site of the slaying.

"My whole attttude toward him changed when I saw hi.m that night, " 

Sirhan related t;o his defen.se lawyer, Grant B. Cooper1.

"Before, I'd assocaated Kennedy wi.th his statemenss about the Phantom 

jets to aid Israel and I pictured him as a villain, but that night he looked like a saint 

to me. I liked him. "

Speaking publicly for the first time about his activates June 4, the eve 

of the shootmg, the defendant said he arrived at the Ambassador Hotel after getting 

l.ost while looking for a Jewish parade on Wilshire Boulevard.

"He had not known that Kennedy would be at the hotel that night, Sirhan 

said# All thoughts about Kennedy and memorees of the writeen determmaiion to 

assassinate the senator were completely out of Sirhan's mind, the defendant 

testified, 11 reported Dave Smith, staff writer, in the newspaper..

-more-
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Under Cooper's questioning, Sir-han's murderous impulses towards

Kennedy were revealed -- chroniceed in his school notebook. ■

As questioning wore on., Cooper “elicited these emotional patterns: 

murderous hate for anyone expressing sympathy for Zionist aims; a perplexing 

warmth toward Kennedy for his views on other subjects, and an abrupt forgetting of 

political considerations when confronted by Kennedy in person, 11 continued the newspaper..

"Junie 4 had been a haphazard day of often-changed plans, " added the

newspaper, as Cooper ..asked Sirhan if he ineended to kill the senator on June 2, 

refer^ng to comments in th e notebook.

Sirhan repleed, "No, sir, I did not;. The notebook was completely

forgotten i.n my mind. " He did not have a gun with him that night:. The defendant 

also denied that on June 2 he had been i.n the hotel kitchen area where Kennedy was 

shot two nights later. '

(two prosecution witnesses, however, testified earlier they got lost in 

the hotel corridors and ran across Sirhan in the pantry area the night of June 2. )

He said today that i.n hi.s opinion, the witnesses were "compleee liars. 

They swore to tell the truth and they didn't, " he said.

On Tuesday, June 4, Sirhan said he planned to spend the day at the 

races, but didn't like the entities so he went target shooting at the San Gabriel 

Valley Gun Clut>.

He was there from noon until 5 p. m. , and denied earlier testimony that 

he practiced rapid-firmg; an elderly man nearby was doing ^ati

When the range cl.osed, said Sirhan, he had eight bullets left i.n the gun

-more-
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and intended to expend those last shots, but the rangemaster's order came before he 

could do it.

Sir han put the gun on the back seat of hiis car "so if I got a traffic ticket 

I don't have to explain. " He started for home, but didn't unload the gun.-.because it 

was difficult to eject the bullets.

Later, he saw an ad in a newspaper (Times) about a march for Israel 

and the phrase "Six Days in June, " referring to the six-day Arab-Israeli war.

"That brought me back to the six days in June of the previous year, 11 

he testified. "I should have been dead for those six days . . . These Zionists, Jews, 

whatever the hell they are, were trying t:o rub in the fact that they beat the hell out 

of the Arabs. 11

Sirhan said he was so infuriated that he decided t:o drive t:o the parade 

site, but he was a day early.

He became lost and since he hadn't been home, the loaded pistol was 

still on the back seat:. "The gun was completely out of my mind, " he added.

Not findnng the parade, the defen.da.nt stopped at election headquarters 

for former Sen. Kuchel, Republican, California. From there h.e went to t:he 

Ambassador, parked and locked his car, and left the gun on the back seat..

Earlier, today, Cooper told of Sir hans interest in the Rosicrucian's 

Digest;, a monthly publication of the mystical cult, which contained an article 

titled "Put It In Writing."

On May 18, it was brought out that Sirhan wrote, "Robert F. Kennedy 

must be assassi.nat;ed before 5 Ju.ne '68. 11 And on June 5, Sirhan shot and killed 

Kennedy.
-more-
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"This mental chain of events was laid bare as Cooper read methodically

through the reading and writing that made up Sirhan’ thinking, 11 reported the 

newspaper.

Cooper also introduced into evidence two pages which he argued success­

fully two weeks ago were "too inflammatory" to be placed before the jury.

The pages, kept from evidence then but released to the press, contained

Sirhan’s wholesaee endorsement of all forms of communism -- even conflicting 

forms -- and an angry attack on the United States.

"Cooper read the pages aloud and later explamed to newsmen that

defense psychiatrists felt the writings had a strong bearing on Siren's state of 

mind -- whi.ch is the key issue in whether Sir han is sentenced to death or simply 

imprisoned, 11 added the newspaper.

Sirhan told the court h.e was not invoWed with anyone i.n the pl.an to kill

the senator and couldn't remember why he used the term "we" when h.e wrote 'We 

believe that Robert F. Kennedy must be sacrificed for the cau.se of t:he poor, 

exploited people. "

"The hand that is doing this writing will do the slaying of the above­

mentioned victim, " read another entry.

THURSDAY, MARCH 6 -- "Outside-courtroom explosis>ni, unknown to

the Sirhan trial judge and jury, enliven the proceedings almost daily,11 accordmg

to A.1 Stump, staff writer, commenti.n.g in a Los Angers newspaper (Herald Examiner)) 

today.
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He mentioned, for example, the appearance of Issa Nahileh, described 

as a member of the British bar and as director of the "Palestinian-Arab delegatstnnn 

to the United Nations. 11

Asked by a reporter why he was here, the lawyer said he was an 

observer and "a group from my homeland interested in Sirhan's welfare paid my 

way from New York:. 11

Asked if he were really here to "cool off Sirhan when he becomes almost 

uncontrollabte and raves i.n court that he wants to plead guilty, fire his lawyers?" 

the visitor stated that Sirhan was a victim of circumstances.

He noted that Sirhan witnessed Arabs forced from their homeland by 

Zionists and as a child lived in a blood bath.

Also noted by Stump, was the fact that Sirhan's mother "now feels free 

to walk out of the Hail of Justice, without a lawyer or gua:rd at her si.de. Previous>yy, 

she never left the building except under escort. 11

Sirhan B. Sirhan completed four days of testimony today as he was 

questioned by one of his defense attorneys. Grant B Cooper-, and cross■lexamiled 

by Lynn D. Compton, chief deputy district attorney.

He told the court that he got drunk on June 4, blacked out while trynng 

to sober up, and "the next thing I remember, I was being choked. 11

Accor dnng to Dave Smith, staff writer for a Los Angeles newspaper 

(Times), "it was the first time Sirhan has mendoned that he had been drnnknng the 

night Kennedy was kiHed. 11

The defendant revealed t:hat he didn't learn for many hours that he had 

fatally shot Senator Robert F. Kennedy and t:hat he was being choked in a struggle

-more-
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Ito subdue him as his gun. continued firing, wounding five others..

Asked by Cooper if he knew that during the blackout, "You walked up

to Sen. Kennedy, pointed a gun to his head, pulled the trigger . . . and he later died. 11

He replied, "Yes. So I learned."

Under questioning by Cooper and cross-examination by Compton, Sirhan 

"denied specific recollection of the shooing or of the rages that consumed him when 

h.e wrote in his notebooks that Kennedy must di.e, 11 the newspaper continued.

Added the newspaper report:

"Compton's questi.oni.ng sought to dispel in jurors’ minds the impression 

Cooper had earlier aimed for m characterizing Sirhan’s notebook writings as the 

disjonnted scribbles of a disordered mnd.

"Instead, Compton suggested, much of the writing was mere doodling 

reflecting Sirhan's daily mterests — girls, horse racmg, jockeys and snatches 

of Arabic songs. 11

Sirhan flared in anger when Compton asser'ted that the defendant must 

have had more notebooks than the three introduced in evidence. Sirhan replied, 

"Were you with me. Ask me. Don't put words in my mouth 1"

Compton then asked if h.e had more such books, and Sirhan snapped,

"I said I don't kn.ow. 11

At another point:, Sirhan remarked of one of Compton’s questions, 

"That's stupid. 11

"Compoon continued in a mild, pleasant tone of voice, but with a thinly 

vei.led skepticism at Sir han's invariable answer:

11 1 I don't exactly remember, ' 11 noted the newspaper.
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However, Sirhan. did admit to a faint recollection of discussing the 

Jack Kirschke murder case with Dep. Dist. Atty. John E. Howard, one of the 

prosecutors in the Sirhan case.

Contmued the newspaper's account:

In later questioning by Compton, the defendant "recalled one of the 

significant detai.ls of the Kirschke case. Kirschke, a deputy district attorney 

and freend of both. Compton and Howard, was convicted in 1967 of murdernig his 

wife and her lover and sentenced t:o death. (The sentence was later commuted 

te lite imprssonment).

"Kirschke claimed he was i.n Las Vegas at the time of the murder, but 

one detail that helped convict him was the fact that when he was arrested there 

and charged with murder,, he failed te ask whom he was accused of murdernng.

"Sirhan, who is reported to have foioowed that trial on televisSon, 

was asked by Compton if Howard hadn't told him last Ju.ne 5 that he probably 

would be tried. 'You didn't ask 'tried for what?' did you, asked Compton.

"'I don't remember, 1 replied Sirhan.

"By Sirhan's account on the witness stand Thursday, this conversatoon 

with Howard would have occurred several hours before Sirhan learned he was 

accused of shssting Kennedy. "

• Sirhan was asked by Compton if he thought the killng of Kennedy helped 

the Arab cause, and the reply was that he (Sirhan) didn't know enough about politics.

"Are you glad he's dead?" was another question and the reply: "No 

sir, I’m not glad. "
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V-

Another question — "Are you sorry?" Answer by Sirhan -- "No sir, 

I’m not sorry, but I'm not proud of it either. 11

The prosecutor "then touched on an explosive courtroom scene that 

occurred last Friday, after the jury had been removed from the courtroom, 11 t:he 

newspaper reported.

"Did you not say you kiUed Robert Kennedy wilfully, prtmeditetedly 

and with 20 years of malice aforethought?" Compton asked. "Yes sir, I did" was 

Sirhan's reply.

Both defense and prosecution attorneys were called to Superior Judge 

Herbert V. Walkers bench and then Compton asked his final question: "You said 

you were willing to fight for the Arab cause?"

"Yes sir, " said Sirhan.

"Are you wilting t:o die for it?"

"Yes sir, Im wilting to die for it. "

Cooper then rtsumtd questioning his client, going over Ine by Une 

the transcript of last Friday's blowup. Jurors learned for the first time that 

Sirhan had tried to fire his three attorneys, change his plea to guilty and demand 

execution.

Cooper asked Sirhan if he hadn't done that because he was mad at the 

way his defense was going, and Sirhan admitted, "Sir, I was boiling. "

FRIDAY, MARCH 7 -- "Retro-grade amnesaa may explain" why Sirhan 

doesn't remember details involved i.n the assassination of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy,

-more-
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Grant B. Cooper, one of the defense attorneys, remarked, according to a story by 

Al Stump in a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald Examiner).

"Ji. such a case, " Cooper told Stump, "a person has memory along a

certain line, then it snaps off and he remembers nothing. 11

Stump also quoted a .leadmg psychiatrist" as follows:

"Briefly, this is a condition where a traumatic event happens. The

person involved retags recall of some of it -- usually the intitial portion. But he 

will forget events prior to it or events associated with it or contributmg to it or in 

some way adjunctive to it.

"It's a well-nnown repressmn with no positive explanation.

"And it's very commion -- happens t:o many people. Ifalso is very

easily feigned. 11

Stump also reseed that Cooper and Russell E. Parsons, another 

defense lawyer, recently "gave the first clinical analyst yet submitted.11

Cooper sai.d that Sirhan "is not psychotic, but a bordering case of 

schizophrenia of the paranoid type. 11

Contained Stump:

"These terms mean what in layman's language? Experts say they mean:

"Psychotcc -- one who cannot undersaadd reality in either a gross or

a special way; a term without the legal implications of the word 'insane. ' 

"Schizophrenia -- type of personality charactered by loss of contact 

with the environment and by eisintegration of the personally; include dementia 

praecox and some related forms of insanity.

-more-
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. "Paranoid - - one who believes others are out to destroy him and he 

must defend himself (but not often defends himself i.n an actively violent or crimiia.1 

way).

'Such terms are expected to become vital as clinical psychologists and 

psychiatrists move in to testify sometime next wekk. 11

FRIDAY, MARCH 7 -- Dave Smith, staff writer, reported i.n a Los 

Angeles newspaper (Times) today that Richard Lubic "was the last, and briefest, 

of a puzzling string of defen.se witnesses whose testimony appeared to strengthen 

the prosecution case" in the Sirhan. case.

Besides Lubic, who claimed to have heard a voice swear at Senator 

Robert F. Kennedy and then heard the shot:, other persons heard today were 

Hans Peter Bidstrub, wh.o said Sirhan asked him for information on the senator; 

and two freends of Sirhan, Enrique Rabago and Humphrey Cordero.

Accordmg to Lubic, in the early momenss of June 5, he heard a voice 

swear at the senator and then heard t:h.e gunshot that took his life. Smith reporeed 

that Grant B. Cooper:, one of the defense attorneys, "didn't even ask if he could 

identify Sirhan as the man who said, "Kennedy, you son of a bitch, 1 and fired the 

shot:. 11

Bidstrub, testified that Sirhan, drink i.n hand, asked him as early 

as 10 p.m. if Kennedy was staying at the Am.bassador Hotel, on what floor and 

i.n what room and if Kennedy had any bodyguards.

The witness sai.d he talked t:o Sirhan about 15 minutes at one political 

party the night before, and hi.s first impressoon was that Sirhan was "half drunk

-more-
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and very talkative. 11 Earlier this week:, Sirhan told of arrivigg at the Ambassador 

Hotel, through a series of haphazard changed plans, without knowing Kennedy would 

be there.

"Bidstrub's testimony, 11 related the newspaper, "tended to corroborate 

the defen.se claim that Sirhan had been drinking that night, and three other witnesses 

said they also saw Sirhan with a glass in his hand.

"Bidstrub's recollection of the assassination ni.ght and of his later 

interveews with law enforcement officials and defense counsel appeared hazy, so 

much so that he could not definitely recall hi.s former statements when confronted 

with them "today. 11

Rabago and Cordero testifeed they talked with the defendant around

10 p. m. anddsaid he had a drink in his hand, but did not appear particularly 

intoxicaeed to them.

Rabago asked Sirhan if he thought Kennedy would win the Democratic 

primary election and he replied yes, adding: "Don't worry if Sen. Kennedy 

doesn't win. That son of a bitch is a millionaire. Even if he wi.ns, he's not 

going to do anything for you, for me or for the poor people. " Rabago said he 

had regarded Sirhan as "educated and arrogant. 11
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MONDAY’ MARCH 10 — Dr. totin M. Schorr, a clinical psychologist, 

today in court described Sirhan' B. Sirloin, the accused assassin of Sen.

Robert F. Kennedy, "as a paranoid personnUty -- who felt he was right and 

everyone else was wrong," according to a story in a Los Angeles newspaper 

(Times).

The newspaper contnnued that the defendant is also '"a schizophrenic 

guided by inner beliefs that didn’t mutch the mUtees of the outside world.”

Meanwwile, another Los Angeles newspaper (HeraldsExaminer) de­
clared that psychhatric trottmony confliceed "sharply with damns of" Emile 

Zola Berman, one of the defense attorneys.

The newspaper rdated thd Berman, in his opening startment, said:

"■The evidence in this case wll dis dose that the defendant, Sirloin

Sirhan, is an inrnatwne rmo0ionally-d0sturrdd and tertnlly-ill youth." 

The newspaper rdated that Sirhan, according to Berman, was

"■totally a product of a sick, obsessed mind and persoonUty."•

Schorr sdd tilt Sir^n has no "psychotic responses ’" and "is not a

raving maniac.b The doctor also said his examinatoon turned up no evidence
of brdn damage in the Jordanian immigrant.

from normal, he added.
more —
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Schorr described tests given Sirhan and said he scored "better 

than the average Aneeican" on the Wechsler Adult Iatelgietree Scale test of 

verbal skills. His verbal ietcliieeet quotient was 109, ranking higher than

75 per cent of the population. Balancing this was a non-verbal ietellicence 

quotient of only 82, better than only 10 per cent of the population, and 

yielding a "spuriously low" IQ of 98. The average is from 90-100.

Under questioning by Berman, Schorr, who is affiliaeed with UC

Hoosital, San Diego, said Sirhan’s identification in the Rorschach "ink­

blot" test incUuded such thnngs as a dove flynng, a crushed frog, a human 

profile exploding, a "male-eemale" rooster, a human trachea, a mounter 

"charging at me," a ballet dancer, ears, scarred seals or sea loons, the act 

of sexual interoousse, the Suez Canal, a riattng red apple and spurting 
blood and a liver.

"Sdaorr pointed out that Sirhan, rather than seei.ng pictures only 

in the colored ink, sometimes found recognizable shapes in the white 

spaces,"' reported Dave Smith, staff writer, in a Los Angeles newspaper 

(Times).

The general pattern of the test, Schorr testifedd was the strongest 

evidence of ^t^me paranoia, a highly aggressive, assertree nature, a 

rigid, very ieefectiitisaic iersontiitl convinced of its own rightness, and 

a dangerously high tendency to gi.ve way under stress to unchecked eInoriinal 
reactions, said the newspaper.

He related that the defendant faieed to answer certain slgaifiiaat 

questions on anoth^ test, tlw Minnesota Multiphasic Personality Inventory, 

which indicaeed he "was ver'y anxious to convince me how normal and sane he 

is.!

more —
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The doctor said this was a ‘ typically paranoid reaction — to con­

vince me how right he is and wrong everyone else isc

He revealed that the indicatoons of psychosis on the tests — 

paaticularly the wide range of highs and lows — were consistent with 

schizophrenia,i. which he described as a !■dicceppancy between the inner and 

outer realty."

In court today, Sirhan seemed more pleased with the results of 

the tests than when scores on his ICQ tests in junior high school were re­

vealed several weeks ago — and he exploded, said Smith.

It was disposed today that additional police protection for Mrs. 

Mary Sirhan, the defendants mother, and his two brothers, Adel and Munir, 

was ordered briefly last week, after reported teephhone threats by another 

brother, Shaarf.

A 24-hour guard on the Sirhan home was estabishhed for one day. 

Police said no charges have been fieed nor arrests made.

TUESDAY, MARCH 11 — In his second day of testimoiy for the defense 

in tiie Sirhan B. Sirhan case, Dr. Maatin M. Schorr, clinical psychologist, 

said that "in the dark recesses of" the defendant's mind, he "harbored hope 

of being caught when he" shot. Senator Robert F. Kennedy, wrote John Douglas, 

staff writer, in a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner).

Schorr told of his theory as he was cross-examined by Dep. Dist. 

Atty. John -. Howard.

Asked by Howard if Sirdar’s behavior around the tine of theaas- 

sassination indicated he was thinking rationally and thus was not in a dis­

sociative personnaity state, another newspaper (Times) said:

more —
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"Schorr would not agree that Sirhan's thirling was rational, but 

only that it was thirling within the con-text of a paranoid psychosis.

"Asked if Sirhan might have lied about drinking the night of 

June 4, Schorr said that lynig under oath would be indicative of socio­

pathic tendencies, and that exhauutive testing showed that Sirhan was not 

sociopathic.

"Howard then asked, ’If you had seen (Sirhan) on June 3, could 

you have prediceed the murder of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy?’

1 Schorr said he could not have prediceed that speerfir murder, 

but said that if similar tests were administered at random to 100 people, 

three or four of them, including Sirhan, would have been pin-pointed as 

’odds-on favoriees to comat murder. 1

"Howard drew from Schorr the admission that one of the tests, the 

Minnesota Muutiphasic Peesonnlity Inventoiyr, was known i.n psychology by the 

nikname ’Mickey House,* and that it was considered to yield 60 to 70 per 

cent accuracy on sick populations.

’’But Schorr added that the test was nonetheeess considered fairly 

reliable and was used only in rmjunrtron with other tests. His own diag­

nosis of Sirhan, hie said, was not based on the MMPI alone, but in the con­

text of other tests.

"Howard also asked Schorr, What would be the behavior of a man 

who had just committed a poriticll assassination and was gl.ad he had done 

it?’

"Schorr said such a person would not have writeen down his i.n- •

tentron to do so, as Sirhan did i.n his notebooks, and would not have com­

mitted the act i.n such a cirumistinice as to show his 'hope of being caught. *

more —
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"Hope of being caught?’ Howard asked skeetically.

"He votlldnt go into a crowded patty/’ said Schorr. ’He’d go 

into an armory with a rifle and he’d try to get away.’I

"Sirhan was seized by mote than half a dozen people before he’d 

even fnnsshed firnng the eight shots from his revolver in the crowded 

pan-try of the Ambassador Hotel).

Continued the article in the newspaper1:

"Howard also asked Schorr what stress might have developed the 

night of June 4 to push Sirhan into a dissociative state so that hie could 

kill Kennedy and have no recollection, of it.

"Schorr said it might have been the sight of the revolver in 

Sirhan’s car, adding that ’the gun i.s a symbol that relates to stress 

dating from his formative years.’

"Said Schorr, ’The gun symbolized the giving to himseef of an 

aggressive personaaity hie doesn't possess; also the need to be treated 

Ikke a man and act lkke a man; also the need not be castrated, as h.e 

allegedly was by his father, through aiegged cruelty and beatings.”’

Schorr also testifeed that he does not believe that Sirhan was 

capable of mature ^d meaningful tremedetatOon in the kiling of the 

senator.

He descrbbed the Palestinian Arab to the .court as a paranoid 

psychotic, incapable of connroling hi.s emotions, ruled by obsessions of 

his own grante.tsity and delusions of persecution.

• The doctor, who administered five psychological tests to Sirhan 

in November1, said he felt the defendant’s mental condition was esseenially 

the same last June as it was i.n November and as it is today.

more —
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A Los Angeles newspaper (Times) added that if the jury agrees 

’•'Sirhan could be found gulty of a lesser degree of murder than first de­

gree, and sentenced to jmpriooiment rather than death.”

Describing one of the tests given Sirhan, Schorr said the Thematic 

Apperception Test consists of pictures in which the patient is asked to see 

and then describe a story or set of cicuimistances. WThat the patient sees

depends upon his subconscious reactions, he said.

Reported the newspaper:

"By far the most dramatic, however, was Sirhan’s reaction on one 

entirely blank card. Sirhan told Schorr:

1 ’’This is the figure of that arrogant, selfassurred bastard with • 

the victorious smirk on his face. Ths i.s the true pictwre of the conqueror. 

Its the minister in Israel, Moshe Dayan, and he’s looking down at people, 

but tee’s a bullet t^t's crashing through his brain at the height of 

his glory.’

"Schorr interuupeed: ’Where in relatoon to this piotine would 

you be stranding if you were part of the srrnr?'

’’’Part of the scene?’ Sirhan rrtireed, *I am the srrnr. I'm the 

one killing him.1

"Schorr said Sirhan described other pictures in teras of lonl!- 

ness, seeing people as assaulted, depressed, hopeless and sutcrdda."

more —
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WEDNESDAY, MARCH 12 — In his third day of testimony today in 

the Sirhan case, Dr. Martin M. Schorr, clinical psychoOogist, said the 

defendant "substitueed Sen. Robert F. Kennedy for the father he would have 

preferred to kill"’ according to a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), 

Meernh01e, another Los Angeles newspaper (HeraldE&aminer) noted 

that "words spoken by Sirhan minutes after he admitted the fatal shooting 

. . . have come back to haunt him at his murder trial in Superior Coout."

Feeling it would not be proper to kill his father, Sirhan inseead 

compromised and chose a "symbolic replical of his father” — Kennedy, the 

psychologist told the jury.

He added that SirOrn "also removes the relattonsOip that stands 

between him and his most precious possession — his mother’s love.’’

During a recess, Mrs. Mary Sirian, the defendant’s mother, ob­

jected when the statement was read to reporters, and declared, ”I don’t 

Ikce this."

In cross-examination of Schorr, Dep. Dist. Atty. John E. Howard 

sought to cast doubt on the validity of psychological tests administered 

to Sirhan in November,, contending the scoring and interpretation results 

are arbitrary.

Schorr, however, defended his scoring of tests given Sirhan and 

would not concede that interpretatoons would vary widely foom one psy­

chologist to another.

Schorr repeated his belief that for several hour’s before and 

many hour's after the killing, the defendant shifted back and forth between 

the real world and a fantasy world. .

more —
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Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times):

"The psychologist said Sirhan was unaware he was drifting foom 

one state of consciousness to another, and while he may have wanted to 

kill Kennedy, he was and still is geniuLnely unaware that hie did.

"Dep. Diet. Atty. David N. Fitts began to play tapes of the first 

inteveews between Sirhan and police after his arrest LLn the early morning 

of June 5.

"In the first tape, made at 12:4-5 a.m., less than half an hour

after Kennedy was shot, Sirhan was advised of his connsitutional rgghts,

including the right to remain silent, and did so. He woulcdi’t give his 

name, height or weight, and his few responses did not bear on the shooting 

at an.."

* * *

THURSDAY, MARCH 13 — The prosecution today contfnued to play 

recordings of the first encounters between Sirhan and police "in an effort 

to prove the Palestinian Arab was fully self-possessed as he skilfully 

avoidLed self-nicrimnatoon,» reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times).

"The defense has contended,11 reported Dave Smith, staff writer, 

that Sirhan, "several hour’s before and after the assassination" of Kennedy 

"was in. a 'diss^iative state' induced by drunkenness, rage and self­

hypnosis, and that he remembers nothing of those hours."

Playing of the tapes in court revealed that at first Sirhan was 

lncuImm!licaaive, subdued and nealy mandible as police and district 

attorneys investigators sought to learn his name. However, by 3:15 a.m., 

three hour’s after the shooting, Sirhan was engaging in earnest discussion

more —
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and humorous barter — still without telling anything about the shooting 

or even his name.

"Every tme questoons began to bear on the events of the pre- 

ceeding few hours, Sirhan cited his coniSitutional right to remain silent," 

said the reporter.

"He waxed chatty, however, about other matters and discussed 

with Dep. Dist. Atty. John E. Howard, now one of his prosecutors, the Jack 

Kirschke murder case, in which Kirschke, formerly a deputy district attor­

ney, was convicted of murdering his wife and her lover."

At the Rappats Police Station and at downtown police head­

quarters, the defendant "persistently turned questions back on his ques­

tioners as hie asked their views of justice, truth and falsehood."

"Sirhan also revealed," wrote the reporter, "a quick and appar­

ently deep affection for Sgt. Wiliam C. Jordan, now a lieuenaant, who ' 

questioned him gently on subjects not related to the Kennedy assassination."

Sirhan, it was revealed, debated with Howard, Jordan and George 

W. Murphy, district attorneys investigator, on the high cost of prenatal 

care, the stock p€arkit, the "Boston Strangler" case, local pooitccs and 

world travel — "all in a blihhe but intense maimer."

Concluded the newspaper article:

"Defense attorneys later told reporters that the tapes could 

support their case as well as the prose^uion's, contending that Sirhan’s 

increasing clarity through the interveews showed only that he was sobering 

up and coming out of his aieeged dissociative state."

* * *

more —
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FRIDAY, MARCH 14 — "A series of striking similaritees" has been 

noted in the language of a psychoOoggst’s report on the mental condition 

of Sirhan B. Sirhan "ami that of a case study in a book by a New York 

criminal psycChiarist,11 according to a New York Times News Service story 

i-n today’s editoons of a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner).

Continued the article:

"The psychologist in the Sirhan case, Dr. Martin M. Schorr of 

the San Diego County Ho septal, acknowledged that he was familiar with the 

book, entitled "A Case Book of a Crime PsycCOartiyty,K by Dr. James A. 

Brussel, assistant commissioner of mental hygiene for the state of New 

York. But he denied plagarizing any part of it.

”’I know I read the book;’ Schorr said in an interview . . . but 

I know it was prior to the trial. 1 The hie aiiei:

" ’ You can use pretty much the same lan/uaage when you talk about 

cases.1 Later, at lunch, the psychologist said that ’I read this book 

quite thoroughly last year.

"Whien I see a phrase that fits in with my thirknig,, subcon­

sciously it becomes part of my language.’

"The yiiilariteey were noticed by a reader of the New York Times 

who saw part of Schcrr's report i.n the newspaper. The reader, a New York 

resident who asked that she not be iilntifeid, called the Times and said 

she had (borrowed) Brussel’s book from a library and, after reading it, 

was struck by the yeem.ngly familiar words when she saw the newspaper 

account.

"in his testimony, Schoor, a defense witness, was aioowed by the

more —
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prosecution to read several excerpts from a four-page report that he had 

prepared on Sirhan after* adninistering a battery of tests to the admitted 

killer of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy.”

The article, by Douglas Robinson, offeeed the folreenlg excerpts 

from Dr. Schoorr’s testimony and from the book:

"Dr. Schoor: Esssnnillly, the more he (Sirhan) raieed and 

stormed, the mom the mother protected Sirhan foom his father and the more 

he withdmw into her protection. ’

"Dr. Brussel; And the more he stormed, the more the mother pro­

tected her boy and the more he withdmw into her —rotecting arms.

"Dr. Schorr: He hated his father and feared him. He would never 

consciously entertain the idea of doing away with him. But somewhere along 

the Une, the -rriecting mother fails her son.

"Dr. Brussel: The boy hated his father, yes — and, more im­

portant, feared him. Themfom, he would never entertain the idea of 

doing away with the man . . . Then, somewhere along the Une, the pro­

tecting mother may have 'famed' her boy.

"Dr. ^hoor: She, wh°m he loved, never kept her pledge, and now 

his pain had m be repaid with pain. Since the unconscious always demands

maxlmim pennlties, the pain has to be death.

"Dr. Brussel: She whom he loved never kept her pledge, and he 

began to feel that she really didn't love him. Pain hud to be repaid with 

pain, andL sinm the unconscious always demands the maximum, the pain had 

to be death.

"Schorr, in discussing t^ similarity between his r’n-ort and

more —
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Brusssl’s case study, said that ’my trannnng was in intaaphysics and so

was his, therefore we think alike.’

"’One phrase Dr. Brussel has used for paranoids, for example,

he continued, ’is champion grudge-hater. I lieed the description so much,

I’ve used it many times. ”:
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with the same ’conspicuous omission’ of events of the shooting or 

memory of writing in diaries that he wanted to assassinate Kennedy.’

SATURDAY, MARCH 22 -- A Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) 

tod&y. published an Associated Press story from Taibeh, Occupied Jordan, 

quoting Sirhan’s father as saying his son shot Kennedy beiause of the 

senator's endorsement of Israel.

• Sirhan Sirhan, Sr., an olive grower, rejected testmrnony 

given i.n his son’s Los Angeles trial that the son may" have been 

meentlly upset at the time of the slaying,' reported Ap.

The father said, according to AP, -there is nothing wrong 

with Sirhan. He trees to tell the court why he kiieed Sen. Kennedy 

but they won’t let him.

If Sen. Kennedy had not said he would send Phantoms (planes), 

tanks and other military equipment to Israel, ^rham would not have 

done it,: the father stated.

Meanwwile, Mrs. Elizabeth Young -vans, 43, who was shrt during 

the Kennedy assassiwltrnn, med a $351,000 Supeeior Court damage suit 

against Sir-han, according to the same newspaper*.

In the suit, Mrs. Evans also n.amed 50 ' John Does.’ They

include , unknown persons*1' who may have ionspe,red with Sirhan i.n the

fatal shooting. Al.so named as Doe defendants are the manufacturers 

and sellers of the pistol used in the lsslssiwltron.

A4h n
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MONDAY, MARCH 17 — Sirhan Bishara Sirhan, the accused . 

assassin of Senator Robert F. Kennedy, ‘was almost a forgotten man 

at his own murder trial as a subsidiary trial shaped- up ovtr the. 

credibility of clinical psychologist Martin M. Schorr today, ro- 

ported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times).

After learning last Friday that many of Dr. Schorr's 

staeements about the dtferdart were almost verbatim quotes from 

another man’s book, the prosecution began intooducing relevant 

portions of the book, 'Casebook of a Crime Psychiatrist,1 by Dr. 

James A. Brussel," as evidence, related the ntwyplptr*.

It was indicated by Dep. Dist. Atty. John I. Howard, -.one- 

of three prosecturors assigned to the hlyt by Dist. Atty. Ewlle J. 

Younger, that portions of the-book not admitted into evidence will 

then be brought out in cont^ned croys-txliination of the psychiOoggst.<.'•'‘ 

. Schorr testfiedd that Sirhan shot Kennedy last June as a . 

’'•yymib°is replica’ of his own father. Schorr’s analysis of Sirhan 

was found to be almost an identical match to Brussel’s hypothetical 

analysis of a New York killer more than a dthlde ago,; added the

Meanvwhie, another Los Angeles newspaper (Herali•-■■Exaiiner), 

noted that a letter writeen by Schorr to Russell E. Parsons, one of 

the three defense lawyers, 'was read into the re?cor'd. It reported 

Sirhaan hated his father and transferrod this hatred to Kennedy.”

Continued the newspaper's ahhourt: ’

.■ The wording of the letter writwwn in December of last 

ytlr was similar to Brusssl's language in the Psychialrist••■lutior’s

more
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description of a 1957 murder case in New York.

■ Associate prosecutor John Howard pressed Schorr on the 

poossbility the psychologist may have prejudged Sirhan. . .

: The letter foom Schorr to Parsons dated July 10 — before 

Schorr interviewed Sirhan — said in part:

' Most murders committed by iasscally passive non-violent 

personnlitees are psychotic discharges of previously undiagnosed 

subtle but real schizophrenia.’

■ • However, Schorr insisted he did not reach any conclusions 

about the defendant’s mental statue unnil after he examined Sirhan.■

TUESDAY, MARCH 18 — Psychooogists, including Dr. Oville 

Roderick Richardson and Dr. Maatin M. Schorr, today assessed Sirhan 

B. Sirhln ’as a man of diminished mental capably/ according to a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-)laminer). .

Dr. Richardson told the court that the defendant ■■'laaeared 

to be in somewhat worse shape when Dr. Schorr tested him than when I 

tested Oim.'••

The doctor tested Sirlim on July 20, 1968, about six weeks 

after Sen. Robert F. Kennedy was slain. Schorr examined Sirhan on 

November 25-26, 1968. ,

Reported the diwsauper•: ■

'■ Deterioration in Sirh^'s thinking processes during the 

intervening months, Dr. Richardson said, showed up i-n the defendant*s 

responses on the Bendde-Geestuut test, in which a subject cipb.e!s 

various designs presented to him. '

■■ The two psychologists told the court their findiggs to 

almost the same battery of psychological ixlminaliins: the Rorschach, 

in which a subject evaluates ink blots; the Wel^r Aduut Idtellignnie' 

Scale, which measures intellieicee; the Bendde-Geetault; the-Minnesota 

MuUtiaOlSbc Peesondlity Inventory, in which a subject tells a story 

about a series of pictures.

■ Dr. Richardson, lrriving at ginieally the same conclusions

as Dr. Schorr, emphasized that he made his evaluation on the basis of
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* content and sequence analysis,’ or what the answer’s said rather than 

on the quantitatiee or statistical results used by Dr. Sccoor.-

Earlier today, Dr. Schorr concluded six days of testimony 

and under cross-examination admitted that he copied several passages 

used in his report from -A Casebook of a Crime Psychoarrist' by Dr. 

James A. Brussel. -

Reported the newspaper:

■■ He said he copied the material because he wanted ’to use 

language that was alive and vivid to state what I had so fumbUngly 

stated in my earlier repoot.’ •

'■The borrowed! phrasing, he said, was used' only to illustaate 

his ftndtngs fomm testing Sinha’ and in no way inflrtceed his evalu­

ation of the defendant.

■ He said he knew nothing about the cases Dr. Brussel was 

describing, but liked the way the author described paranoid charac- 

trristics. ••

Pressed by Assistant District Attorney John E. Howard, 

Dr. Schorr said he often copies phrases foom technical books and 

that, ’When I use language to describe what I have already written, 

I don’t quote it (indicate by quotation manks). I don’t claim 

authorship for these.,

WEDNESDAY, MARCH ’9-— 'Watching Sinha’ Bishara SirM’ ,

every day, it is simetimrs difficult to remember he is a man, 25 

years old today,- Dave Smith, staff writer for a Los Angeles news­

paper (Times) wrote today.'

Continues the article, in part: ,

’To many people, a 25th birthday is a tine to take stock 

on that first third of their liees which usually governs how the 

rest will go. ’ •

■ But to Sirhan, this milestone marks the virtual end of a 

lite that was oddly incomplete, barely begun.

‘ Hc enter's the ciurti.iim with a jaunty strut, smiles and
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waves at his mother, Hary, and brothers, Munir and Adel, and occa­

sionally even nods a greeting to certain reporters whose stories he 

has read and been pleased with. • .

■ He is elaborately polite to everyone in the courtooom, 

chopping up his sentences with a respectful ’sir’ at every phrase, 

so that he i.s some tomes ,diffi cult to foioow as he threads his deliy 

cate, courteous way through testOmony on how he shot Sen. Robert F. 

Kennedy in the head at point-baank range bu-t can’t remember doing it;.

• He is on trial for his Ifee, in what he reportedly regards 

as a purely political assassination, an act of patriotiso to the 

Palestinian Arab cause, justified by maltreatment of Arab reuugees 

like himseef.

1 All the psychiatrc evidence for both sides agree that 

Sirhan doesn’t want to be portrayed as a psychotic, but as a man 

with a mission.

‘ Sirhan’s view of his-motive is thus a heroic one, and he 

is said to be gratifeed that many Palestinian refugees regard hmm- 

as a national hero and eloquent exponent of their long-saandngg 

greeannee against ZiinSor. ,

What is striking about Sirhan’s view i.s its utter irrele­

vance to the quiet Pasadena existence he has known for half his liee.

In some twisted way that perhaps only psychiatry may ever 

explain, Sirhan walked the quiet, shaded streets of Pasadena and 

grew to a meek, podite adul■iiood with bloody scenes of Aral?--Israeli 

cornfict raging before his mind’s eye.- „

Concerning Sirhan’s inabblity to remember the events at 

the Ammbssador Hotel, Smith notes that this 'is the keystone of 

Sirhan’s defense theory of diminished capacity to primeedtate.

■ His attorneys claim that tie diminutive Arab was i.n a 

taance when he kiieed Kennedy, suffering a dissiciateve reaction to 

which paranoid schizophrenics are prone, abetted by degrees of drunk­

enness, self-Adduced hypnosis, long-eerm rage at Zionimm and shoat- 

10° rageaat Kennedy’s support of Israel. ’ '
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’■The prosecution counters that Sirhan's aieeged trance is 

part retoegrade amnesia and part convenience.

"Whether amnesia is feegned or a genuine part of Sirhan's 

mental illness remains to be proved. But the.untested evidence of 

his iUeeas — .from his chiddhood in Jerusaeem to his own chaotic 

scribbliegs in his comege notebook - testify to both a im of 

flight down bUnd aUeys and to an iron prode that could not or 

would not seek a way out/

In court today, Dr. O. Roderick Richardson, clinical psy­

chologist, resumed the stand and described Sirhan as a paranoid 

schizophrenic whose mental illness was ;about as severe as you can 

get without being unchangeable.'

He told the court that he felt Sirhan had been acutely ill 

• for a year or two before the June 5. slaying, adding that when he 

^ministe^ psychological tests last July, Sirlim was then ■ getting 

worse/-

9 The defendant, relaeed Richardson, '■ was a very ill person 

who was descending further into mental illness.• Sirhan, he con- ’ 

tnnued, had not passed the point of no return. He was close to being 

incurable, but still capable of either improvement or regression.

The doctor said he felt Sirhan’s conddtion had worsened by 

November, when he was tested by Dr. Maatin M. Schorr who, after six 

days on the stand, admitted he liteed foom a PsycCiartist's book 

the language he used in describing Sirhan as a paranoid schizophrenic.

'■•On the whole/ reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), 

;-Richardson's conclusions tended to support those of Schorr, though 

Richardson admitted under cross-examination by Dep. Dist. Atty. David 

N. Fitts that he gcrreg tests aifnereltly foom Schorr, and would not 

have made certain conclusions that Schorr did. ' ' ■•

■ Hi describing Sirhan's paranoia, Richardson said he 

found Sirhan to ’re ’.bamming, suspicious, wordy, powwn-orinlted, 

judgemental and mooraistic' i.n his relationship with other people.

• He said Sirhan showed si^s of delusions of imnipitenee
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and grandeur and wishes to associate himseef with symbols of pres­

tige and status. Sirhan also felt himseef the victim of unidentified 

influences, Richardson tesbifeed.

■• Richardson said Sirhan had a supeeior Mnllintlcn and 

linennd him to a ’good engine out of t.utn' bncausn of erratic func- 

toonnni in his daily emotional liee.' ’

The witness also declared that Sitthan’s rnlhttont to the 

Themmtic Appreceptttn Test revealed depressive suicidal, hostile 

tendencees hnighUtued by anXiety over anything suggesting ^x.

Said the newspaper:: ’

’• One reaction, to a picture oa a man and woman in a bed­

room, ’SUiies•ts a sexual problem,’ Richardson said. Sirhan inter­

preted the picture as showing a man after he had either raped or 

strangedd the woman. ’This emphasis on aggression and hottIlity 

in ctnnnctton with sex,’ Richardson said, .’makes the sexual topic 

a frihhnenini one' for Sirhan.’..

THURSDAY, MARCH 20 -- Sirhan B. Sirhan premeditaedd the 

kilitni of Senator Robert F. Kennedy, but not in the ■■mature and 

menntngi•ul■ way that must be proved tt justify a death ^nt^n^ for 

fistt~eigeen murder in the opinion of a clinical psychologist and a 

psychhiaritt, both of whom testifeed in the trial today. ■ 

O. Roderick Richardson, psychologist, said that Siren’s 

pl.an to kill Kennedy ’would be premendtatOon of the ^rt when a 

mennal patient in a locked ward plans to steal the keys from the 

night nurse and nthapn through the kihlhnt wndw.- '

Pstchhaaritt iric H. Marcus htnhndnd that Sirhan was cap- 

lbleCtf planning the slaying, forming an intent to commit murder and 

harbornng malice aforehhought. , ‘ ’

But, added Marcus, such plans arose from Sirhlt’t paranoid, 

view of himself as a "savior of society,' and in this mut^t could 

not honsSituee mature and iielanngiul premiUdtlt.Otn.

Besides Richardson and Marcus, the defense called two mom
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clinical psychologists, Dr. Stephen J. Howard and Dr. William Crain. 

The two were excused with little or no cross-examination, and testi­

fied they examined raw data from five psychological tests administered 

by Richardson to 5irhan. ; ■

A Los Angeles newspaper (Times) reported that after • evalu­

ating the tests independenniy they • reached the same diagnosis as 

Richardson: that 8irhan is, a paranoid schizophrenic and was in a 

state of diminished mental capacity when hie shot Kennedy..”.

It was revealed for the first timn in open court — by 

Marcus — that the prosecuUion's psychiatric consultant, Dr. Seymour 

Pollack, also considers Sirhan a paranoid schizophrenic, added the 

newspaper.

But, Marcus testiieed, Pollack also maantains that there 

is no relatoonship between Sirhan’s cental illeess and the crime. 

Marcus found Sirhan to be suffering foom delusions of persecution, 

particularly political persecution, and said, I fail to see that., 

logic of contending there is no relationship between Siren's de­

lusions and his 'lommittlgg a crime directly related' to his politicil 

views.

Under questioning by Grant B. Cooper, one of the defense 

attorneys, Marcus admitted that he and all other psychologists and 

psychhatric experts in the case, including Pollack, had met on Feb. 

2 in Cooper’s offie to compare flndnngs.

Reported the newspaper: -

■ It was after that meeting, when all reports for both sides 

turned out to be in subs-sannia! agreement, that the prosecutoon and 

defense agreed to submit a change of plea, foom innocent to guiIty, 

with the understanding that Sirhan would receive a liee sentence.
■ Supprior Judge Herbert V. Walker was wilUhg t° accept • ■ 

the plea ihangn, but insisted that the jury determine the penalty. 

Sir-han was unwilling to risk the death penalty at that time, so tta 

agreement fell through.

The defense went on with its original plea and the-prose- 

cation was c°mmittrd to try the case and attempt to dilute the effect
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of psychiatric testimony that is corroborated by its own experts.1

During cross-examination by Drp. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts 

■today, Richardson was asked if Sirhan might have slain tie senator 

because he wanted iso be regarded as a hero to tie Palestinian Arab 

cause.

Sirhan - was not grandstanding/ said Richardson. He con­

ceded that some people could have seen themselves is a hero’s role 

in the Arab-Israeli conflict and decided to kill on a rational basis, 

but not Sirhan.

• Richardson added that Sirhan’s tests showed that his de» 

cisoons are not made on a ratoona! basis but a psscCht■nc one.

As lor Sirhan’s mental condition, Marcus testified that 

this became noticeable only alter the defendant was thrown from a ' 

hnrsr in September, 1966. Soon after the fall, Sirhan, who had am- 

bitndns to become a jockey, quit his job as an exercise boy.

Noted the newspaper:: „

■ Marcus said Sir Jam iii ^t suffer any bra-tin damage foom 

the fall, but said the fall ’was the last straw. His career aspira- 

tioni were fdniheed and foom then on he started going visi.bly 

iowwdhll. ’

Meannwhle, hotter Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-£aminer) 

related that the defense had reduced the number of its witnesses, and 

quoted Cooper as saying "We might as well wind it up. We’re in good 

shape so why prolong it.1 .

Added the newspaper::

■ Cooper foeesaw that the drfrdie could cnncludr its case 

by th’ end of next week. Only 24 hours eablier he had forecast a 

timetable which would have lbitei at least two weeks'.•• .
* •

I

FRIDAY, MARCH 21 — A psychhabriit, Dr. Eric H. Marcus, .

’aid in court today teat Sdte^ B. Sirhan was deliberately made 

drunk in his cell last year for medical tests.

The defediant had te b’ physically reitradnei becauir
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the alcohol turned him into a -wild beast,' the psychiaarist related.

Sirhan, added Marcus, was given six ounces of gan in Tom 

CoOlinses, downing four an iS.'minutes, -and you might say he went 
beserk.-- •

Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times): .

1 Wile drunk; Sirhan would no talk about his fatal shootings: 

of Rooert F. Kennedy last Junie, but spok:e of Kennedy as if he were 

still alive,' Marcus testified.

"■He said Sirhan mumbled that '20 years i.s long enough for 

the Jews,f that Kennedy 'didn't have to help them, and 'The bastard 

(Kennedy) isn't worth the bullets,1 when asked if he kiieed him,

' Marcus saad Sirhan was very polite when sober, but when 

drunk yened, 'Get that bastard out of here,1 as Marcus, a Jew, started 

to enter the cell. -

••But later, Marcus said, Sirhan mistook him for a brother and 

'asked me to take him home.' Marcus said he had the impression Sirhan 

thought he was at the Ambassador and wanted to be driven home.

■ The dlflnsl which called Marcus to testify, contends that • 

Sirhan was intoxhaaled the morning of June 5, when he shot Kennedy*

'-Marcus said Sirhan appeared extremely nervous and agitated 

when drunk i.n his cell and at one point grabbed for his own throat, 

thinking he was choking.

‘ Marcus said Sirhan was given the alcohol to test his brain 

waves under the infueend of alcohol.

’ halier, Mards conceded Sirhan might be lying or 'malingering' 

in claiming he doesn't remember kilinng Kennedy.

’ But, Marcus added, he doesn't believe’so.

Defense Atty. Grant B. Cooper today offered into evidence ,

two of Sar’hai's high school histor/texts in ateemptnng to prove that 

Sirhan ’-may have begun vaguel.y planning an assassinator as early as 

1962 or 1963; when he was a junior or senior at John Muur High School in . 

Pasadena,1’ reported t^ newspaper.. & -

‘ ” In one book, where the assassinatoon of William McKinley is
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described as the third slaying of a U.S., president, Sirhan was alleged 

to have writeen, : Many more will come.

In the second book, on European history, Sirhan i.s said to 

have underlined a passage describing the 1914 assassinatoon of Austrian 

Archduke Precis Ferdinand — the act which tregeeeed World War I.

’•It was the only sndellinine in the entire text,- said the 

newspaper-. '

Under crosseexaminatOin by Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts, 

Marcus said Sir-han had told Mm at some point during the four psychhatrCc 

interviews stretching foom June-October, 1968, that he couldn't remember 

the .hour's immediately before and after the shooting of Kennedy.

‘ You don’t beHeve it, do you?' asked Fitts. : Yes, I believe 

it,'‘: responded the psyeciiarist.

'-M^cusesMd SirMn might have developed a retoegaade amnesia, 

which results ’when a person does someehing that causes so much anxiety 

that it is blocked ou of a person's mind... In my experience., I have 

hardly ever seen a murderer who remembers what he's arie. I think 

it’s a bona fdde amnesia, not malinglring,'• reported the newspaper-.

Meanwwhle, cotter Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) 

not;ed that Dr. Bernard L. Diamond, associate dean of criminooogy at 

the Un.versity of Ca.UfOriia, Berkeley, tlstieying today said that 

he diagnosed SirMn as meenally ill and suffering foom schizophrenia.' 

SirMn was ’ diravn lkke a magnne' to Kennedy, whom he ad- 

mittlale shot, Diamond added. • '

Sirhan was said to have told Diamond that he loved and hated 

Kennedy. The criminologist said he came to accept the contradictory 

conversation as typical of Sirhan, related the newspaper.

Continued the newspappe's report of the trial: , .

Dr. Diamond, Mo said he saw psychological test results 

showing Sirhan mpeially ill before he met the defendant, recounted 

what Sirhan told him about the night of June 4-5. '

' The story he related to me on the initial intprveew iw. 

esssliialle the story which, he told on the witness stand,It he said,
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Re: The ississinitoon of 
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Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest 
m the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday,.June 5, 1968, and proceedings 
in court, the OOfice of Los Angeles County District . '

• Attorney Evelle J. Younger is publishing a weekly
summary of the case. This its the- 43rd summary, and 
others will be foi reeease on subsequent Wednesdays.

MONDAY, MARCH 24 — Through self-hypnosis, Sirh.lo B. Sirhao pro- 

grmmmied himseef "like a commuter- to assassinate Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, 

Jiho Douglas, staff writer for a Los Angeles newspaper‘ (HeraldEjXaminer) '
wrote about today's -trial.

' "This- is the conclusion of Dr. Bernard L. Diamond, Berkeley crimi­

nologist," the writer added, as the doctor today cltmlxed two days of testi­

mony by reading his opinion. .

The doctor's summary, as published in a Los Angeles newspaper

(Times): .. - -

"The comminution of events which led to the assassination of 

Robert F. Kennedy by Sirhlo, I think, started with Sirhlo Sirhan'e exposure 

to vioeence and death in Jerusalem in 1948, and it ciotOjtued with his immi- 

grltiio• to the United States, the dlvlOrtmlnt of his mental iineess in which 

his whole personalty altered and he became preoccupied with, rlvilttion, 

vidence, destruction, rarloiiLd fantasies of glory, power and becoming the 
savior of his people. '

"As hO delusional flotleile grew bolder, his fanatical hatred and 
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fear of the Jews inceeased with each radio and television broadcast con­

cerning the tension in the Middle Last, while in real liee, Sirhan was 

withdrawing into a ruminative, brooding, isolaeed sense of failure and in- 

signiiCannce. To improve his mind and to gain control, he hoped, over his 

personal destiny, he read mystical books and subscribed to and studied the 

Rooicrucian correspondence courses in tklf-hypnitit and mind power.

"He practceed .his lessons diligently to. the point where he became 

frihheened by his own magcal, supernatural powers of concentratoon. He 

actually believed that he could stop the bomber's foom reaching Israel..-and 

thereby save the Arabs, simply by wiling the death of all who would help 

the Jews." .

(The refeeence to the bomber's concerns the senator's backing of 

sending 50 planes to Israel).

"His experiments in inducing the magical trances worked better 

them he fizzed — they worked so wlU. th^ thks-frighkeeed Sirhan and con­

vinced him that he was losing his mind, that he was going insane. Repeat­

edly, he would practice his lessons doing all that his correspondence courses 

prescribed, looking in the mirror, thinkeng thoughts of love and peace, only " 

to emerge from his trance — a trance that he did not really beleeve had 

actually happetkd — to fnnd his titkbook fiieed with incoherent threats -of 

vioeence and tttassinttion.• ■ •

’•He knew it was his writnng, but he had no knowledge or recollec- ' 

twn of writnng them. He concluded he was craiy and he feared to let atyonk 

ktLi>w what was happening. He thought they would lock him away in a mental 
hospital.

more —



Weekly Summary #43
Page 3 . •

. -He sought the remedy in his books on mysticism and the occult,

and he daydremmed of the power of his gun, taking every opportunity on many 

different days to shoot it, firing hundreds and hundreds of shots as if 

eech shot would somehow make up for hr.i every growing sense of helplessness, 

importence and fear of loss of self-control. ■

’■With absolutely no knowledge or awareness of what was actually 

happening in Ms Rosicruc^n and occult experiments, he was gradually pro­

gramming himssef, exactly like a computer is progamimeed by its magnntoc 

tape, programming himself for the coming aiiassinetOon. In his unconscious 

mind there existed a plain for the total fulfilleent of his sick, pegenoid 

tetrad of Kennedy and ail who might want to help the Jews. In his conscious 

mind there was no awareness of such a plan or that he, Sirhsin, was to be the 

instuument of aiiassinatOon.

■ •• It is my opinion that through chance, ciccmmstances, and a suc- 

crsii.on of unrelated events, Sirhan found hiusief in the physical situatoon 

in which the aiiessinatOon occurred. I aim iatrifeed that if he had been 

fully conscious and in his usual cental state he would have been quite 

harmless.

• But he was confused, bewildered and partially intoxceaeed. The 

mirrors in the hotel lobby, the faashnng Igghts, the general confusoon — 

this was like prassing the button which starts the computer.

■ ”I agree tMt this is an ^surd and preposteruus story, unlikely 

and incredible. I doubt that Sirhan himself egr•res with me as to how every­

thing happened.

■ Mrhan would rather believe that he is the fanatical m^tyr who 

by hi.i noble act of self—ircg■friee has saved his people and brcomr a greot
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hero. He claims to be ready to die in the gas chamber for the glory of the 

Arab people. •

• However, I see Sirhan as smai and helpless, pitifully ill, with 

a demented psychotic rage, out of control of his own consciLouisness and his 

oww.actions, subject to bizarre dissociaeed trances i.n some of which he pro­

grammed himself to be the instrument of assassination, and then in an almost 

accidentally induced twilight state he actually executed the crime, knowing 

next to nothing as to what was happening.'- ' •

. Diamond related i.n court today that Sirhan, under hypnosis, fi-ledd

i .n this picture of the hours leading up to the shooting:

After having four Tom Collrnkes at various poOitical parties at 

the Ambassador Hotel on June 4, Sirhan went back to his car to go home, but 

felt "dizzy, drunk, eickish-trked. .

He opened his car door, saw the pistol on the back seat and thought, 

"The Jews will steal my gun.- He tucked the gun under his belt and returned' 

to the hotel for some coffee to sober up on. ■

The eefereart wandered around.the hotel unnil he found a coffee 

bar located i.n an alcove between the Imbassy Room, where the senator was 

speaking, and the Colonial Room, where the senator headed after the speech.

Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) on Diamond’s tketimory:

: The alcove was walled with mirrors, and Sirhan became confused 

with the brightly ^gheed .chandekikre rkf:Lectrng in the mirrors, and the 

crowds of people, ultipleed by the dozen i.n the fioir-to-ckilrig looking 

glass.

' He had several cups of coffee with a girl — described as brunette 

and bekutiful — and Diamond said Sirhan was absolutely consistent in denying
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that there was any thought of doing anything with his gun.”'

Diamond added that he discounted •the posssbility that Sirhan 

might be faking mental iineess, saying that among paranoid schizophrenics 

like Sirhan, their chief wish is to 'fake sanity, rather than insanity,1 

because they don’t want to be thought of as psychooic/ reported tho 

newspaper.. ' ■

Conninuing his testimony, the psychhitrist cited o^ previously 

undisclosed family scene, which he said, .contribueed heavily t° Sirhan’s 

cental deterioraton.. '

■ In the summer of 1957, Sirhan’s father, Bishara, and brother, Adel, 

were digging an irritatSon ditch around a tree, while Sirhan skipped in thw 

mud. . -

After warning Sirhan to stop, Bishara started to beat his son, but 

was stopped by Adel. Bishara, Diamond said, stemmed into the house and told 

his wife, Mary, that she must choose between him or the children, because he 

demanded to be master of his house. ' .

She chose the children, Diamond said, whereupon the father took 

the family savings, returned to Jordan and has not been in touch with his 

family since. ■

The doctor also revealed he once considered using sodium pentathol, 

— "truth serum- — on Sirhan instead of hypnosis, but Supeeior Judge 

Herbert V. Walker ruled this out.

It was explained that he made the ruling after learning t°at in 

rare cases a subject could die foom the effects of sodium pentathol. -

Judge Walker felt that the death of Sirhan, a Palestinian Arab, 

from a dosage of sodium pentanol administered by Jewish doctors — Diamond
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